
AGENDA 
Commissioners' Meeting 

February 13, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 

  $    401,501.05 
$    401,501.05 

D. Doan
J. Johnson

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance

2. Approval of the Agenda

3. Commissioner Absence

4. Communications

5. Approve minutes of January 23, 2024 Commissioner meeting

6. Voucher Approval
• Accounts Payable Vouchers 200681-200784:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE VOUCHERS:

7. Local 3390 Reports

8. Chiefs Reports

9. Standing Committee Reports

10. Chairman’s Report

11.  2022 Bond Update

12. OLD BUSINESS
a.

13. NEW BUSINESS
a. County Radio System Access Fees
b. Station 53/57 - Bid Award

14. Open Public Comment (state your name for the record, you will have 3 minutes)

15. GOOD OF THE ORDER

16. SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS

17. EXECUTIVE SESSION pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a public
employee.  No action will be taken.

Adjourn Meeting.  Next regular meeting will be Tuesday, February 27, 2024, at 5:00 PM 



 

 
 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
January 23, 2024 

Chairman Urvina called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Present: Commissioners Urvina, Sutich and Nelson, F/C D. Doan, A/Cs P. Oldenburg, T. Meyer, J. 
Johnson, J. Black, Finance Director Krystal Hackmeister (virtual), and EA T. Vandervaate.   

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioners Sutich and Nelson moved and seconded approval of the agenda as presented. With no 
further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
COMMISSIONER ABSENCE 
Commissioners Nelson and Sutich moved and seconded approval of Commissioners Entze and 
Wilsie’s absences from today’s meeting.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED 
by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS  
 
MINUTES AND BLANKET VOUCHERS 
Commissioners Sutich and Nelson moved and seconded approval of the January 9, 2024 meeting 
minutes.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Commissioners Nelson and Sutich moved and seconded approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers 
200611-200680, Payroll Vouchers 200593-200610, and ACH transfers as set forth in the agenda for a 
total consideration of $2,961,169.56.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by 
unanimous roll call vote. 

 
LOCAL 3390 REPORTS 
 
CHIEFS REPORTS 
 
Chief Black reported: 
 New vehicles coming soon to support the divisions 
 Getting ready to spec a new medic unit; another one ordered two years ago should arrive in 

2024 
 Will be traveling to Boise/BME for a pre-construction meeting for the Type III engine ordered 

for Fox Island 
 
Chief Meyer reported: 
 District will be providing support on February 9th at the Night to Shine event 
 District is hosting a TCC paramedic student who has been assigned to A-Shift 
 He is serving on the CTE Committee for Peninsula School District; Dumas sits on a medical 



 
Board of Commissioners 

01‐23‐2024 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

subcommittee 
 The District and DEM are hosting ICS instruction at the City of Gig Harbor 

 
Chief Doan reported: 
 He attended the Washington Fire Chiefs Board meeting yesterday and Legislative Day in 

Olympia today – some topics this year are Tax Increment Financing, moving the Fire 
Marshal out from under State Patrol, and increasing the 1% cap to 3%. 

 He is scheduled to attend a quarterly meeting with Katrina Knutsen at the City of Gig Harbor 
 A group of leaders from local taxing districts have begun meeting to talk about bonds and 

levies 
 Pierce County Fire Chiefs will be meeting this week – a major topic is radio subscriber fees 
 February 12 is the first day for our lateral new hires 
 Lieutenant promotional interviews are scheduled in early February 
 The Prevention Division is helping film a recreation of his Fox Island community 

presentation 
 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
FINANCE REPORT 
Krystal Hackmeister, Finance Director, presented the November 2023 financial report. 
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
2022 CAPITAL BOND PROJECTS UPDATE 
Chief Johnson updated the Board on the following: 
 A septic easement has been prepared to record with the County for the training campus project 
 The closing date to bid on the 53/57 projects has been extended to February 8; a pre-

construction meeting last week was well-attended 
 Station 51 cost has been estimated at $19 million including sales tax and construction is 

anticipated in March of 2025.  
 A RFQ for Station 50 has been published and closes on February 5 

 
OLD BUSINESS  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
A. Resolution 2024-01 – Canceling Checks-Warrants.  Krystal Hackmeister presented Resolution 

2024-01 canceling checks and warrants and requested Board approval.  Commissioners Nelson 
and Sutich moved and seconded approval of Resolution 2024-01.  With no further discussion, the 
MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

B.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS 
 



 
Board of Commissioners 

01‐23‐2024 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Urvina adjourned the meeting at 5:22 pm.  

The next regular meeting will be 5:00pm on Tuesday, February 13, 2024. 

 

 
  Chairman/Commissioner 

 

 
  Commissioner 

 

 
  Commissioner 

 

 
  Commissioner 

 
 

  Commissioner 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Attest:  District Secretary 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 200681 through 200720 111,887.18$              111,887.18$                        

111,887.18$              111,887.18$                        

 

111,887.18$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: January 23, 2024

APPROVED BY KRYSTAL HACKMEISTER

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 1/24/2024

















ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 200721 through 200743 40,806.28$                40,806.28$                          

40,806.28$                40,806.28$                          

 

40,806.28$                       

VOUCHER APPROVAL: January 30, 2024

APPROVED BY KRYSTAL HACKMEISTER

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 1/31/2024











ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 200744 through 200745 3,328.80$                  3,328.80$                            

200746 through 200782 213,147.53$              213,147.53$                        

200783 through 200783 1,050.00$                  1,050.00$                            

200784 through 200784 31,281.26$                31,281.26$                          

248,807.59$              248,807.59$                        

 

248,807.59$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: February 6, 2024

APPROVED BY AC OLDENBURG

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 2/7/2024





















PIERCE COUNTY FIRE 

CHIEFS’ ASSOCIATION 
P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

 
 
 

February 2, 2024 

 

Jody Ferguson, Director 

Pierce County DEM 

2501 S. 35th St. Suite D 

Tacoma, WA 98409 

 

 

Jody, 

The Pierce County Fire Chiefs Association has carefully reviewed your recent communication regarding 

proposed rate increases for users of the Pierce County 700 Mhz radio system. We fully recognize the 

significance of this matter, including the financial implications for fire districts that heavily depend on the 

Pierce County radio system for emergency communications. 

The accessibility of regional communications is a cornerstone for all first responders in Pierce County, 

irrespective of their affiliation with a specific radio system. These communication systems play a crucial role 

in ensuring the safety of both the public and emergency responders. Regrettably, the proposed rate increase 

by PCDEM puts some fire districts in a challenging position, forcing them to choose between hiring essential 

emergency personnel or allocating resources to cover the sharply rising radio system access fees. 

The rate increase for the 2024 emergency radio communication access fee was discussed during our Pierce 

County Fire Chiefs Association meeting on January 25th. The users of the 700Mhz system have collectively 

chosen to adhere to the budgeted per-radio user fee from 2023 for the year 2024. The Pierce County Fire 

Chiefs Association stands in support of this prudent approach taken by these districts. We urge PCDEM to 

explore alternative funding mechanisms for its radio system rather than transferring the entire financial 

burden onto end users. A collaborative effort to identify sustainable funding sources would undoubtedly be 

beneficial for all stakeholders involved. 

Furthermore, we strongly encourage ongoing dialogue between Pierce County and involved parties to 

explore the possibility of establishing a unified radio system. This approach would not only streamline 

governance but also foster a more efficient and cost-effective system, benefiting entities like SS911. 

In conclusion, the Pierce County Fire Chiefs Association appreciates your attention to this matter and remains 

committed to collaborating on solutions that uphold the safety and well-being of our communities. We look 

forward to engaging in constructive discussions to address these concerns and ensure the continued 

effectiveness of emergency communications in Pierce County. 

 

 

Jim Sharp, President 

Pierce County Fire Chiefs’ Association 



O
rd

er
 O

pe
ne

d

Bidder 

Acknowledgment 
of Addendum

(3) Total Issued
(Y/N)

Fire Station 53 Bid Amount
Fire Station 57 Bid 

Amount

 Total Bid Amount
(Lump Sum) 

 Trench Excavation 
Safety Provisions 

Principal 
Subcontractor 
List Included 

(Y/N)

Provided 
Mandatory 
Information, 
page 4, (Y/N)

Certification of 
Compliance with 
Wage Payment 
Statutes (Y/N)

Bid Bond 
Included

(Y/N)

Non-Collusion 
Form Signed

(Y/N)

Bidders 
Qualification 
Certificate  
Included

(Y/N)

1
BFC Construction Inc. Y 1,003,000.00$          1,200,000.00$         2,203,000.00$                                  $0.00 Y Y Y Y Y Y

2
Mountain Inc Y 1,109,930.00$          1,182,842.00$         2,292,772.00$                                  $0.00 Y Y Y Y Y Y

3
Westmark Construction Y 1,265,198.00$          1,362,715.00$         2,627,913.00$                                  $0.00 Y Y Y Y Y Y

4
Cliff Thorn Construction Y 1,145,513.00$          1,249,843.00$         2,395,356.00$                                  $0.00 Y Y Y Y Y Y

5
Christensen, Inc. Y 1,132,000.00$          1,252,000.00$         2,384,000.00$                                  500.00$             Y Y Y Y Y Y

6
The BJC  Group, Inc Y 1,172,900.00$          1,311,400.00$         2,484,300.00$                                  $0.00 Y Y Y Y Y Y

7
Kassel & Associates, Inc. Y 1,069,720.00$          1,206,280.00$         2,277,000.00$                                  1,000.00$          Y Y Y Y Y Y

8
Lincoln Construction, Inc Y 1,282,370.00$          1,377,371.00$         2,659,741.00$                                  2,500.00$          Y Y Y Y Y Y

9
Jody Miller, Inc Y 1,446,000.00$          1,506,000.00$         2,954,000.00$                                  2,000.00$          Y Y Y Y Y Y

11 -$                                                   -$                   

12 -$                                                   -$                   

Gig Harbor Fire and Medic One - Station 53 and 57 Additions
Bid Opening:  February 8th -due by 2:00pm. Opening and recording at 2:30pm
Location:  Gig Harbor Fire and Medic One Station 50 Headquarters 

BID TABULATION 


	2024-02-13 Preliminary Draft Agenda
	Commissioner Mtg 01-23-2024
	Voucher Totals - 01.23.24
	Voucher Approvals - 01.23.24
	Voucher Totals - 01.30.24 
	Voucher Approvals - 01.30.24
	Voucher Totals - 02.06.24
	Voucher Approvals #1 - 02.06.24
	Voucher Approvals #2 - 02.06.24
	Voucher Approvals #3 - 02.06.24
	Voucher Approvals #4 - 02.06.24
	PC DEM - Radio Access Fees
	53 57 Additions Bid Tabulation - Final.pdf
	Sort by Base + Alt 




